
*The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (August 2, 2010) 
R:\Recorder\Council Packet\2010-0802\01 Council Agenda 2010-0802.doc Page 1 

Council accepts comments on agenda items during the meeting.  Fill out a form identifying the item you wish to speak on prior to the agenda 
item beginning and turn it into the City Recorder.  (The exception is formal land use hearings, which requires a specific public hearing 
process.) 

 

CITY OF NEWBERG 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

AUGUST 2, 2010 
7:00 P.M. MEETING 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM 
401 EAST THIRD STREET 

 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER* 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

(30 minutes maximum which may be extended at the Mayor’s discretion; an opportunity to speak for no 
more than 5 minutes per speaker allowed) 

 
VII. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2010-2915 authorizing the City Manager to enter 
into agreement with the State of Oregon to exchange federal funds for state funds. (Pgs. 3-10)  

 
2. Consider a motion approving City Council Minutes for June 28, 2010, and July 6, 2010. (Pgs. 11-20) 

 
VIII. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Consider a motion to approve Order No. 2009-0026 approving the findings that the proposed 
annexation and concurrent zone change meet the applicable Newberg Development Code criteria 
and approve Ordinance No. 2009-2729 annexing two adjacent parcels located at 308 Hwy 99W 
and 612 W. 3rd Street and scheduling this item for the November 2, 2010, General Election. 

  (Quasi-Judicial Hearing) (Pgs. 21-64)
 

IX. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 

 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1



*The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (August 2, 2010) 
R:\Recorder\Council Packet\2010-0802\01 Council Agenda 2010-0802.doc Page 2 

INDEX OF ORDERS, ORDINANCES AND/OR RESOLUTIONS: 
 
ORDERS: 
Order No. 2010-0026 finding that two adjacent properties located at 308 Hwy 99W and 612 W. 3rd Street, 
Yamhill County tax lots 3219BD-2500 & -2600 meet the applicable Newberg Development code criteria to be 
annexed into the City and to change the current zoning designation from Yamhill County LI to City C-2. 
 
ORDINANCES: 
Ordinance No. 2010-2729 declaring two adjacent properties located at 308 Hwy 99W and 612 W. 3rd Street, 
Yamhill County tax lots 3219BD-2500 & -2600, be annexed into the City of Newberg and withdrawn from the 
Newberg Rural Fire Protection District subject to a public vote, and authorizing and directing the City Elections 
Officer to certify to the Yamhill County Clerk a ballot title for the measure to be submitted to the Electorate of 
the City of Newberg for their approval of an annexation for this same property. 
 
 
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City 
Manager’s office of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than 
48 hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact Norma Alley, City Recorder, at (503) 537-1283. 
 
Public testimony will be heard on all agenda items at the Council meeting. The City Council asks written testimony be submitted to the City 
Recorder before 5:00 p.m. on the preceding Thursday. Written testimony submitted after that will be brought before the Council on the night of the 
meeting for consideration and a vote to accept or not accept it into the record. 

Page 2



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2010-2915 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: August 2, 2010 
Order          Ordinance           Resolution   XX          Motion               Information ___ 
No.                  No.                       No.  2010-2915 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Resolution: Tabrina McPherson 

SUBJECT:    Authorize the City Manager to Enter 
Into Agreement with the State of Oregon to 
Exchange Federal Funds for State Funds. 
 
 

Dept.:  Public Works Department 
 
File No.:  
                            (if applicable) 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2010-2915 authorizing the City Manager to enter into agreement with the State of 
Oregon to exchange federal funds for state funds.  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The State of Oregon, through the Department of Transportation, administers federal funds for improvements 
to roadways classified as arterial or major collector.  Each year the State offers to exchange those federal 
funds for state funds at the ratio of 94%.  This allows the City to use the funds for various transportation 
projects without having to follow the federal contracting procedures. Following the state contracting 
procedures saves the City about 15-25% per project. 
 
The available federal funding totals $462,066.00.  Those federal dollars exchange to $434,342.04 state 
funds.  This is for the combined 2009 and 2010 years.  We plan to use this money to offset the cost of the 
Sheridan Street Road Improvements Project at the Chehalem Cultural Center. 
 
The City Public Works Department provides the City Council with regular updates about the status of the 
monies provided through this program.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
Reduces the impact to the Street Fund by $434,342.04.  
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
 
Executing this agreement provides an additional $434,342.04 to be used for already approved capital 
improvement projects.  

Page 3



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2010-2915 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO 
AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF OREGON TO EXCHANGE FEDERAL 
FUNDS FOR STATE FUNDS 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. The State of Oregon, through the Department of Transportation, administers federal funds for 

improvements to roadways classified as arterial or major collectors. 
 
2. In lieu of the City using the funds on arterial or major collectors, the State has offered to exchange 

state dollars for federal dollars at the ratio of 94%.  This allows the City to utilize these funds for 
projects on any roadway conforming to state contract procedures and not federal contract 
procedures. Generally, this will reduce the construction cost by 15-25%. 

 
3. The State has agreed to exchange $462,066.00 federal funds for $434,342.04 state funds for the 

combined 2009 and 2010 years.   
 
4. We plan to use this money to offset the cost of Sheridan Street Road Improvements Project at the 

Chehalem Cultural Center. 
 
 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The agreement prepared by the State entitled Miscellaneous Contracts and Agreements No. 26,882 is 

shown in Exhibit “A”, which is attached.  Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted and by this reference 
incorporated.   

 
2. The City Council authorizes the City Manager to sign said agreement and any future amendments 

subject to approval of the City Attorney as to the legal sufficiency. 
 

 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: August 3, 2010. 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 2nd day of August 2010. 

 
__________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 5th day of August 2010. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2010-2915 PAGE 1 

Page 4



Misc. Contracts & Agreements 
No. 26882 

Oregon Department of Transportation 
2010 FUND EXCHANGE AGREEMENT 
Various City Street Improvement Projects 

City of Newberg 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the STATE OF OREGON, 
acting by and through its Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as “State”; 
and CITY OF NEWBERG, acting by and through its designated officials, hereinafter 
referred to as “Agency”, collectively referred to as the “Parties”. 
 
RECITALS 

1. By the authority granted in Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 190.110, 366.572, and 
366.576, State may enter into cooperative agreements with counties, cities, and units 
of local governments for the performance of work on certain types of improvement 
projects with the allocation of costs on terms and conditions mutually agreeable to the 
contracting parties. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, the premises being in general as stated in the foregoing Recitals, it 
is agreed by and between the Parties hereto as follows: 
 
TERMS OF AGREEMENT 

1. Agency has submitted a completed and signed Part 1 of the Project Prospectus, or a 
similar document agreed to by State, outlining the schedule and costs associated with 
all phases of various city street improvement projects, hereinafter referred to as 
“Project”. 
 

2. State has reviewed Agency’s prospectus and considered Agency’s request for the 
Fund Exchange. State has determined that Agency’s Project is eligible for the 
exchange of funds. 
 

3. To assist in funding the Project, Agency has requested State to exchange 2010 
federal funds, which have been allocated to Agency, for state funds based on the 
following ratio: 

$94 state for $100 federal 
 

4. Based on this ratio, Agency wishes to trade $462,066 federal funds for $434,342.04 
state funds. 

 
5. The term of this Agreement will begin upon execution and will terminate September 

30, 2012, unless extended by an executed amendment. 
 
6. The Parties agree that the exchange is subject to the following conditions: 
 

Page 5

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. 2010-2915



City of Newberg / State of Oregon – Dept. of Transportation 
Agreement No. 26882 
 

Page 2 of 6 

a. The federal funds transferred to State may be used by State at its discretion. 
 
b. State funds transferred to Agency must be used for the Project. This Fund 

Exchange will provide funding for specific roadway projects and may also be 
used for the following maintenance purposes: 

 
i. Purchase of Production of Aggregate. Agency shall ensure the purchase 

or production of aggregate will be highway related and used exclusively 
for highway work. 
 

ii. Purchase of Equipment. Agency shall clearly describe how it plans to use 
said equipment on highways. Agency shall demonstrate that the 
equipment will only be used for highway purposes. 

 
c. State funds may be used for all phases of the Project, including preliminary 

engineering, right of way, utility relocations, and construction. Said use shall 
be consistent with the Oregon Constitution and statutes (Section 3a of Article 
IX Oregon Constitution). Agency shall be responsible to account for 
expenditure of state funds. 

 
d. This Fund Exchange shall be on a reimbursement basis, with state funds 

limited to a maximum amount of $434,342.04. All costs incurred in excess of 
the Fund Exchange amount will be the sole responsibility of Agency. 

 
e. State certifies, at the time this Agreement is executed, that sufficient funds 

are available and authorized for expenditure to finance costs of this 
Agreement within State’s current appropriation or limitation of the current 
biennial budget. 

 
f. Agency and any contractors shall perform the work as an independent 

contractor and will be exclusively responsible for all costs and expenses 
related to its employment of individuals to perform the work including, but not 
limited to, retirement contributions, workers’ compensation, unemployment 
taxes, and state and federal income tax withholdings. 

 
g. Agency shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, regulations, 

executive orders and ordinances applicable to the work under this 
Agreement, including, without limitation, the provisions of ORS 279C.505, 
279C.515, 279C.520, 279C.530, and 279B.270, incorporated herein by 
reference and made a part hereof. Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, Agency expressly agrees to comply with (i) Title VI of Civil Rights 
Act of 1964; (ii) Title V and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; (iii) 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and ORS 659A.142; (iv) all 
regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing 

Page 6

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. 2010-2915



City of Newberg / State of Oregon – Dept. of Transportation 
Agreement No. 26882 
 

Page 3 of 6 

laws; and (v) all other applicable requirements of federal and state civil rights 
and rehabilitation statutes, rules, and regulations. 

 
h. Agency, or its consultant, shall conduct the necessary preliminary engineering 

and design work required to produce final plans, specifications and cost 
estimates; purchase all necessary right of way in accordance with current 
state and federal laws and regulations; obtain all required permits; be 
responsible for all utility relocations, advertise for bid proposals; award all 
contracts; perform all construction engineering; and make all contractor 
payments required to complete the Project. 

 
i. Agency shall submit invoices to State on a monthly basis for actual costs 

incurred by Agency on behalf of the Project directly to State’s Project 
manager for review and approval. Such invoices will be in a form identifying 
the Project, the Agreement number, the invoice or account number (or both), 
and will itemize all expenses for which reimbursement is claimed. Under no 
conditions shall State’s obligations exceed $434,342.04, including all 
expenses. Travel expenses will not be reimbursed. 

 
j. Agency shall, at its own expense, maintain and operate the Project upon 

completion at a minimum level that is consistent with normal depreciation and 
service demand. 

 
k. All employers, including Agency, that employ subject workers in the State of 

Oregon shall comply with ORS 656.017 and provide the required workers’ 
compensation coverage unless such employers are exempt under ORS 
656.126. Agency shall ensure that each of its subcontractors complies with 
these requirements. 

 
l. This Agreement may be terminated by either Party upon thirty (30) days’ 

notice, in writing, and delivered by certified mail or in person. 
 

i. State may terminate this Agreement effective upon delivery of written 
notice to Agency, or at such later date as may be established by State, 
under any of the following conditions: 

 
A. If Agency fails to provide services called for by this Agreement within 

the time specified herein or any extension thereof. 
 

B. If Agency fails to perform any of the other provisions of this Agreement, 
or so fails to pursue the work as to endanger performance of this 
Agreement in accordance with its terms, and after receipt of written 
notice from State fails to correct such failures within ten (10) days or 
such longer period as State may authorize. 

Page 7

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. 2010-2915



City of Newberg / State of Oregon – Dept. of Transportation 
Agreement No. 26882 
 

Page 4 of 6 

ii. Either Party may terminate this Agreement effective upon delivery of 
written notice to the other Party, or at such later date as may be 
established by the terminating Party, under any of the following conditions: 

 
A. If either Party fails to receive funding, appropriations, limitations, or 

other expenditure authority sufficient to allow either Party, in the 
exercise of their reasonable administrative discretion, to continue to 
make payments for performance of this Agreement. 

 
B. If federal or state laws, regulations or guidelines are modified or 

interpreted in such a way that either the work under this Agreement is 
prohibited or either Party is prohibited from paying for such work from 
the planned funding source. 

 
iii. Any termination of this Agreement shall not prejudice any rights or 

obligations accrued to the Parties prior to termination. 
 

m. State and Agency agree that if any term or provision of this Agreement is 
declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unenforceable, 
illegal, or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and 
provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the Parties 
shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the 
particular term or provision held to be invalid. 

 
7. Agency acknowledges and agrees that State, the Oregon Secretary of State’s 

Office, the federal government, and their duly authorized representatives shall 
have access to the books, documents, papers, and records of Agency which are 
directly pertinent to this Agreement for the purpose of making audit, examination, 
excerpts, and transcripts for a period of six (6) years after final payment. Copies 
of applicable records shall be made available upon request. Payment for costs of 
copies is reimbursable by State. 

 
8. Agency certifies and represents that the individual(s) signing this Agreement has 

been authorized to enter into and execute this Agreement on behalf of Agency 
under the direction or approval of its governing body, commission, board, 
officers, members or representatives, and to legally bind Agency. 

 
9. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts (facsimile or otherwise) 

all of which when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all 
Parties, notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories to the same 
counterpart. Each copy of this Agreement so executed shall constitute an 
original. 

 

Page 8

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. 2010-2915



City of Newberg / State of Oregon – Dept. of Transportation 
Agreement No. 26882 
 

Page 5 of 6 

10. This Agreement and attached exhibits constitute the entire agreement between 
the Parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no understandings, 
agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein regarding 
this Agreement. No waiver, consent, modification or change of terms of this 
Agreement shall bind either Party unless in writing and signed by both Parties 
and all necessary approvals have been obtained. Such waiver, consent, 
modification or change, if made, shall be effective only in the specific instance 
and for the specific purpose given. The failure of State to enforce any provision of 
this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by State of that or any other 
provision. 

 
THE PARTIES, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that each 
Party has read this Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms 
and conditions. 
 
The funding for this Fund Exchange Program was approved by the Oregon 
Transportation Commission on November 14, 2007 as a part of the 2008-2011 
Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). 
 
The Program and Funding Services Manager approved the Fund Exchange on July 
15, 2010. 
 
The Oregon Transportation Commission on December 29, 2008, approved Delegation 
Order No. 2, which authorizes the Director to approve and execute agreements for day-
to-day operations. Day-to-day operations include those activities required to implement 
the biennial budget approved by the Legislature, including activities to execute a project 
in the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signature page to follow 

Page 9

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. 2010-2915



City of Newberg / State of Oregon – Dept. of Transportation 
Agreement No. 26882 
 

Page 6 of 6 

On August 2, 2005, the Director, Deputy Director, Highways and Chief Engineer 
approved Subdelegation Order No. 5, in which the Director, Deputy Director, Highways 
and Chief Engineer delegate authority to the Region Managers to approve and sign 
intergovernmental agreements over $75,000 up to a maximum of $500,000 when the 
work is related to a project included in the Statewide Transportation Improvement 
Program (STIP). 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG, by and through its 
designated officials 
 
By _______________________________ 
      Robert Andrews, Mayor 
 
Date _____________________________ 
 
By _______________________________ 
      Daniel Danicic, City Manager 
 
Date _____________________________ 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL 
SUFFICIENCY 
 
By _______________________________ 
      City Legal Counsel 
 
Date _____________________________ 
 
By _______________________________ 
      Dale K. Hormann, Assistant Attorney 
        General 
 
Date _____________________________ 
 
 
Agency Contact: 
Tabrina McPherson, Capital Projects 
  Program Administrator 
City of Newberg 
PO Box 970 
Newberg, OR  97132 
Phone: (503) 537-1273 
Email: tabrina@newbergoregon.gov
 

STATE OF OREGON, by and through its 
Department of Transportation 
 
By _______________________________ 
      Jane S. Lee, Region 2 Manager 
 
Date _____________________________ 
 
 
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED 
 
By _______________________________ 
      Michael T. Long, Region 2 Project Delivery 
        Manager 
 
Date _____________________________ 
 
By _______________________________ 
      Lisa D. Nell, Acting Region 2 Planning & 
        Development Manager 
 
Date _____________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
State Contact: 
Sam Johnston, Special Projects Coordinator 
ODOT Local Government Section 
355 Capitol Street NE, Room 326 
Salem, OR  97301-3871 
Phone: (503) 986-3789 
Email: samuel.a.johnston@odot.state.or.us
 
 

 

Page 10

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. 2010-2915

mailto:tabrina@newbergoregon.gov
mailto:samuel.a.johnston@odot.state.or.us


City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: August 2, 2010 
Order        Ordinance          Resolution              Motion  XX         Information ___ 
No.                   No.                        No. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:  Jennifer Nelson, Recording 
Secretary    

SUBJECT:    Approve the June 28, 2010, and July 6, 
2010, City Council Meeting minutes. 

Dept.:  Administration  
File No.:                              
                            (if applicable) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
Approve the June 28, 2010, and July 6, 2010, City Council minutes for preservation and permanent retention 
in the City’s official records. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
On June 28, 2010, and July 6, 2010, the City of Newberg City Council held public meetings.  At those 
meetings, minutes were recorded in text. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  
 
None. 
 

Page 11



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (June 28, 2010) 
R:\Recorder\Council Packet\2010-0802\05 Council Minutes 2010-0628.doc Page 1 

CITY OF NEWBERG CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
JUNE 28, 2010 

7:00 P.M. MEETING 
PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM 

401 EAST THIRD STREET 
 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Bob Andrews called the meeting to order at 7:03 PM. 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
Members 
Present: Mayor Bob Andrews  Denise Bacon   Stephen McKinney   
 Bart Rierson    Marc Shelton   Wade Witherspoon 
Staff 
Present: Daniel Danicic, City Manager Terrence Mahr, City Attorney 
 Janelle Nordyke, Finance Director Jennifer Nelson, Recording Secretary 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
None. 
 
V. APPOINTMENTS 
 

Consider a motion to appoint the most qualified candidate to fill the City Council District #6 
vacant position created by the resignation of Mr. Bob Larson for a term expiring December 31,  
2010. 

 
Mayor Andrews gave some background and explanation of the anticipated process for the evening.  Candidates 
were drawn by lottery for the order of interview and fifteen minutes allotted for each to respond to the questions 
they have already received.  Councilors will rate the responses using an established scoring system and entertain 
motion later.  
 
Mr. Terrence Mahr, City Attorney, spoke of Section 33 of the Charter and made some legal statements 
regarding appointments needing a majority of the votes.  He noted the scoring sheets will be signed and 
submitted into the permanent record.  The appointed candidate will attend their first Council meeting as a 
Councilor on July 6, 2010. 
 
Mr. Ryan Howard spoke of his current enrollment as a law student and described himself as outgoing, objective, 
logical, and persuasive with a strong work ethic.  He said he had two prevailing reasons for his desire to serve; 
the first was to give back to a city he calls home and encourage others to do the same.  He also spoke of his 
volunteering with an environmental stewardship program with the Oregon Department of Transportation 
(ODOT) and with the Traffic Safety Commission (TSC) Bicycle Rodeo.  The second reason was to further his 
understanding of local government and laws; he feels the organization of society is fundamental to existence 
and is fascinated by how the local level interacts with the other branches of county, state, and federal 

Page 12



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (June 28, 2010) 
R:\Recorder\Council Packet\2010-0802\05 Council Minutes 2010-0628.doc Page 2 

government.  He felt encouraging and maintaining growth is a critical issue for Newberg because it cannot be 
assumed things will return to the pre-recession level; expenditures need to be carefully planned with reliable 
and proven methods.  He encouraged investments and growth, but he felt finding a balance backed with funding 
is critical.  He felt Newberg’s most positive attribute was its sense of community and the pride of its citizens 
and local businesses.  He gave his opinions on a recent Council issue regarding a daytime curfew, saying he 
supports schools to do what they can by holding the students accountable.  He stated he understood the time 
commitment for this position and felt he would be capable of meeting the requirements as a full time student 
with effective time management. 
 
Councilor Marc Shelton asked him about his perception of the recent rate increases in the context of growth. 
 
Mr. Howard replied that any time rates increase it is essential to consider the impact on the citizens, the 
increases may be necessary, but the impact must also be reasonable.   
 
Councilor Bart Rierson asked if he planned to run to be elected for the position after the duration of the current 
term. 
 
Mr. Howard said he would like to serve as long as he can, but funds are limited and he cannot determine if he 
will or not at this point. 
 
Mr. Ray Waller said he worked for government all his life as a police officer and assistant chief.  After 
retirement he also worked for an attorney general’s office in California and for a private security company in 
Oregon.  When he completely retired, he took care of his wife of forty-four years until she passed.  He decided 
to apply for appointment as a way to get moving and serve again.  He felt the major issue facing Newberg is the 
economy, although the wine industry has not been hurt as heavily and the college is also a steady source to rely 
on.  Regarding recent Council decisions he spoke of the water rate increases; although he disagreed with them 
and they hurt him financially it had been four years from a previous increase and it was prudent and proper to 
have one.  His schedule is open so he did not feel the time commitment would be a problem. 
 
Councilor Shelton asked how he viewed the work of volunteers and citizen groups to come to decision on rate 
increases as councilor. 
 
Mr. Waller said he has been involved with volunteer groups most of his life and he felt the more, the better. 
 
Councilor Rierson asked if he was selected, would he plan to run for election.  Mr. Waller replied he would. 
 
Mr. Ernie Amundson, Jr. has lived in Newberg since 1964 working at local businesses and volunteering for city 
groups like the Citizens’ Rate Review Committee (CRRC) for the last ten years and the Budget Committee for 
the last eight years.  It has given him good insight on how the City Council works with other committees and 
staff.  He said he takes pride in being a resident and getting to know a lot of people over the years, he likes to be 
a part of it all and give back to the community.  He felt a critical issue for the City is the Budget because of the 
economy balancing it this year was difficult and next year will be also; tough decisions had to be made and will 
continue to be as the City figures out how to do what they are doing with less and less available money.  He felt 
Newberg’s greatest positive attribute is its people.  He also spoke of the city’s staff growing from within and the 
leadership that comes from their experience being invaluable.  He spoke of a recent decision involving his work 
on the CRRC for a step utility rate increase; he was the only member that voted no because although the repairs 
were needed the timing of the significant increase was too steep to ask for in light of the current unemployment 
rate.  But, he felt good that the City endorsed an assistance program to help low income families with that 
increase.  He said he was aware of the time commitment as he ran for the seat in 2006 and he is willing to 
commit to it.  He said he also intends to run in the fall. 

Page 13



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (June 28, 2010) 
R:\Recorder\Council Packet\2010-0802\05 Council Minutes 2010-0628.doc Page 3 

Councilor Stephen McKinney asked about his negative vote on the rate increase on the CRRC and asked how 
he felt he would handle other difficult decisions in the future as a councilor. 
 
Mr. Amundson, Jr. replied that on the CRRC he was chosen to represent Newberg as a citizen and that amount 
of an increase was just too much; but, as a councilor he would be asked to make decisions for what is best for 
the city as a whole, not just from the view of a citizen. 
 
Mr. Dale Farris said he was an Oregon native who graduated from Tigard High School in 1977 and went into 
the military.  After a twenty-one year career, he retired to Albany for ten years and relocated to Newberg in 
2009 with plans to make this his home.  He has wanted to serve and this has been the first opportunity his 
schedule has allowed him to do that.  He felt the critical issue facing Newberg is facilitating growth while 
keeping the small town feel.  He understood the need to get revenue, but not at the expense of the citizens or 
just growing to grow.  He felt the people were Newberg’s most positive attribute and the small town feel.  He 
spoke of recent discussions on a daytime curfew and the decision to continue only after more information was 
received; that tells him the Council is concerned about the issue and not just making changes for change sake.  
He said he understands the time commitment and would have to work out a scheduling conflict if he is 
appointed, but he felt it could be overcome.  He plans to run in the fall. 
 
Councilor Shelton asked him to talk about utility rates and balancing the need to facilitate growth while keeping 
the small town perception. 
 
Mr. Farris said if infrastructure needs to be updated then dollars need to be raised; but, the size of the increase 
and the burden of the citizens and businesses need to be considered so they are carrying the load equally. 
 
Councilor McKinney asked how this can be achieved when the city is faced with significant capital 
improvement projects that are not optional. 
 
Mr. Farris said if it is mandated then a way needs to be figured out to get the dollars either by rate increase or 
other vehicles if warranted and not undue on certain segments of the population. 
 
Mr. Robert Fitzner said he has been living in Newberg over a year working with a company that works with 
ODOT on the construction of bridges statewide and he has met a lot of stakeholders in the community.  He also 
worked in Saudi Arabia working with government agencies on issues of infrastructure.  He is interested in 
giving back to the community and being involved in the decision making process.  He felts the critical issue for 
Newberg is the Newberg-Dundee Bypass project and how it will affect residents, not just in the corridor, but 
also in the businesses.  He agrees Newberg’s people are its most positive attribute and its being a good small 
town with access to larger events; he felt the city had a good blend.  He spoke of a recent hearing on the 
Columbia Drive local improvement district where a citizen raised an issue and the Council decided to postpone 
their decision until those issues could be addressed; he felt this was very diplomatic.  He said he was aware of 
the time commitment and although he has a forty hour work week to schedule around, he can be flexible and he 
will run in the fall. 
 
Councilor Shelton asked about rate increases and how he thinks it impacts how he would come to a decision. 
 
Mr. Fitzner said no one likes additional taxes, but they are a necessary evil for expansion as well as operation 
and maintenance.  If they have not been raised in four years, as was said earlier, then it is necessary to increase 
the rates in order to keep up. 
 
Councilor McKinney asked him to clarify his comments on the bypass and decreases in business revenue.  He 
asked him what benefits or potential non-benefits he saw with the bypass. 
 

Page 14



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (June 28, 2010) 
R:\Recorder\Council Packet\2010-0802\05 Council Minutes 2010-0628.doc Page 4 

Mr. Fitzner said there are both benefits and non-benefits.  The citizens could live better without having to deal 
with the large volumes of traffic on a daily basis, but, revenue will also be lost from people who would 
normally be passing through town that will not be if the bypass is built.  He felt it would probably be better in 
the long term to build the bypass though. 
 
Mayor Andrews recessed at 7:58 PM for staff to collect and tally the scores and reconvened at 8:10 PM. 
 
Mr. Danicic provided the score results for each of the candidates.  Mr. Ryan Howard and Mr. Ernie Amundson, 
Jr. were ranked as the two top scoring candidates. 
 
Councilor Rierson argued for Mr. Amundson even though he ranked second, placing higher value on his being a 
lifelong resident with his duration of service to the City already, he felt strongly that his experience was greater. 
 
Mayor Andrews also agreed that a stronger sense of a long term commitment can be realized on behalf of the 
City with Mr. Amundson based on his background. 
 
MOTION:  Rierson/Shelton to nominate Mr. Ryan Howard and Mr. Ernie Amundson, Jr. for consideration as 
the most qualified candidate to fill the City Council District No. 6 vacant position for a term expiring December 
31, 2010.  (6 Yes/0 No/1 Vacant)  Motion carried. 
 
 
MOTION:  Rierson/Shelton to appoint either Ryan Howard or Ernie Amundson, Jr. as the most qualified 
nominee to fill the City Council District No. 6 vacant position for a term expiring December 31, 2010.   
 
VOTE #1:  To appoint either Ryan Howard or Ernie Amundson, Jr. as the most qualified nominee to fill the 
City Council District No. 6 vacant position: 
 
Ryan Howard   3 Yes [McKinney, Bacon, Witherspoon]/0 No/1 Vacant 
Ernie Amundson, Jr.  3 Yes [Rierson, Shelton, Andrews]/0 No/1 Vacant 
 
Failed for lack of a majority. 
 
Mayor Andrews recessed until 8:38 PM.  He reconvened with three more questions for each of the top two 
candidates to answer:  what makes a good city council, how to fund projects out there that need to be 
completed, and if they are unsuccessful in the appointment would they still be willing to run in the election. 
 
Mr. Amundson said a good city council has to be willing to dedicate hours of their time with little compensation 
and they have to be willing to make decisions that are not always popular. 
 
Mr. Howard said they must be receptive to the citizens for what they want and better equipped to provide those 
services.  For funding, although times are tough, actions need to focus on the efficiency of programs and 
expenditures.  If limited funds are available, it is necessary to look at the impacts to ensure the most gets done 
with the least amount of money.  Alternative programs to encourage the citizen to take on a burden that would 
otherwise burden the city should be emphasized, like reducing water usage and riding bicycles to limit the need 
to invest in roads. 
 
Mr. Amundson spoke of adding a dollar onto the utility bills to fund the additional police officers being a good 
example of finding funding, it may not be real popular but there were more who supported it than disapproved.  
He is planning on running in the fall even if he is not successful in the appointment tonight. 
 

Page 15



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (June 28, 2010) 
R:\Recorder\Council Packet\2010-0802\05 Council Minutes 2010-0628.doc Page 5 

Mr. Howard said while he may be at whim of his career when he is done with classes in three years, his family 
lives here and he would be willing to run for election. 
 
VOTE #2:  To appoint either Ryan Howard or Ernie Amundson, Jr. as the most qualified nominee to fill the 
City Council District No. 6 vacant position: 
 
Ryan Howard   4 Yes [McKinney, Bacon, Witherspoon, Andrews]/0 No/1 Vacant 
Ernie Amundson, Jr.  2 Yes [Rierson, Shelton]/0 No/1 Vacant 
 
Mr. Ryan Howard was appointed to the District No. 6 vacant position. 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:54 PM. 

 
ADOPTED by the Newberg City Council this 2nd day of August, 2010. 

 
 

    ____________________________ 
     Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 
 
ATTEST by the Mayor this ____ day of August, 2010. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor  
 
 
 

Page 16



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (July 6, 2010) 
R:\Recorder\Council Packet\2010-0802\06 Council Minutes 2010-0706.doc Page 1 

CITY OF NEWBERG CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
JULY 6, 2010 

7:00 P.M. MEETING 
PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM 

401 EAST THIRD STREET 
 
Work Session was held prior to the meeting.  A discussion on the League of Oregon Cities (LOC) Legislative 
Agenda 2011.  No decisions were made. 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Bob Andrews called the meeting to order at 7:05 PM. 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
Members 
Present: Mayor Bob Andrews  Denise Bacon   Stephen McKinney   
 Bart Rierson    Marc Shelton   Wade Witherspoon 
Staff 
Present: Daniel Danicic, City Manager Terrence Mahr, City Attorney 
 Steve Olson, Associate Planner Janelle Nordyke, Finance Director   
 Dain Eichel, Acting Public Works Director Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 
  Jennifer Nelson, Recording Secretary 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
IV. OATH OF OFFICES 
 
The Oath of Office for Ryan Howard was performed. 
 
V. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Daniel Danicic, City Manager, announced the League of Oregon Cities (LOC) 85th Annual Conference in 
September is now full and asked about those interested in attending; he said Tunes on Tuesday starts next week 
on July 13, 2010; and finally he will be on vacation and out of the office from July 7-21, 2010, so he will be 
missing the July 19, 2010, City Council meeting, but Mr. Mahr will be attending. 
 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
None. 
 
VII. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2010-2910 authorizing the acceptance of the 
canvass of votes for the May 18, 2010, Primary Election. 

 
2. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2010-2911 approving the annual evaluation of the 

City Attorney. 
 

Page 17



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (July 6, 2010) 
R:\Recorder\Council Packet\2010-0802\06 Council Minutes 2010-0706.doc Page 2 

3. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2010-2912 approving the revised City Attorney 
position description. 

 
4. Consider a motion approving a Proclamation declaring July 22-25, 2010 as Old Fashioned  

Festival Week. 
 
5. Consider a motion approve a Sound Permit for Parr Lumber Company and FFA Calf Roping, 

Horse Riding, Barbecue and Band event on July 10, 2010.  Partial proceeds from the event will 
be donated to the “Ronald McDonald House”. 

 
MOTION:  Shelton/Witherspoon approving the Consent Calendar including Resolution No. 2010-2910 
authorizing the acceptance of the canvass of votes for the May 18, 2010, Primary Election, Resolution No. 
2010-2911 approving the annual evaluation of the City Attorney, Resolution No. 2010-2912 approving the 
revised City Attorney position description, a Proclamation declaring July 22-25, 2010 as Old Fashioned Festival 
Week, and a Sound Permit for Parr Lumber Company and FFA Calf Roping, Horse Riding, Barbecue and Band 
event on July 10, 2010 as amended.  (7 Yes/0 No) Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Andrews read the proclamation declaring the week of July 2-25, 2010, as Old Fashioned Festival Week 
and presented it to the Old Fashioned Festival Committee Chair.  Ms. Becky Green, Human Resources Director, 
presented the Old Fashioned Festival Princess Court. 
 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2010-2905 adopting the revised Public Works 

Department Fee Schedule. 
TIME – 7:16 PM 
 
Mr. Danicic and Mr. Dain Eichel, Acting Public Works Director, presented the staff report (see official meeting 
packet for full report). 
 
Councilor Marc Shelton asked what makes Newberg’s process of composting so unique and if that’s the reason 
they are not competing with other places for compost.  Staff replied it is the level of dryness that makes the 
City’s compost unique. 
 
Councilor Bart Rierson said he was frustrated by the high cost; he liked the fact the City could dispose of their 
solid waste from the waste water treatment plant, but he was concerned that only running the saw dust dryer for 
2.9 hours is approaching $800,000.00.  He does not wish to be in the business of selling compost, but he likes 
getting paid to get rid of solid waste.  He will support the resolution, but felt it would be nicer to have the saw 
dust dryer cost less money and still run at capacity.  Staff replied additional capacity costs is to cover population 
increases over a twenty year lifespan which will balance out down the road. 
 
Councilor Ryan Howard asked what the effects would be to run at capacity, rather than just a couple of hours 
over the twenty year lifespan.  Staff replied the design is to last twenty years running twenty-four hours a day, 
but part replacement costs would occur at about ten years, it really does not make a difference. 
 
Discussions followed about the compost material itself being $30.00 a yard which is currently selling for $10.00 
a yard. The staff proposed bumping the cost up to $14.00 a yard to recover some costs; the income from 
composting from last fiscal year was $43,120.00.  Council spoke with staff about different rate alternatives for 
commercial vs. non-commercial buyers as well as a reduced rate for Newberg citizens.  They also discussed 
various ways to track this difference, like checking driver’s licenses or including vouchers in the utility bills; 
staff felt the additional duty would currently be an undue burden on the loader operator.  Staff emphasized 

Page 18



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (July 6, 2010) 
R:\Recorder\Council Packet\2010-0802\06 Council Minutes 2010-0706.doc Page 3 

citizens are already getting a break by recovering any costs on the compost because most cities have to pay to 
dispose of their solid waste; asking the loader operator to complete an additional task could result in additional 
costs for increasing employee hours.  Vouchers in the utility bills would also be a problem for those citizens 
who do not receive their water bills. 
 
Mr. Terry Mahr, City Attorney, warned the Council of a potential conflict of interest if they consider giving 
discounts to Newberg citizens because they could all benefit from the decreased rate and have a financial 
advantage. 
 
Councilor Denise Bacon felt the City was fortunate to get paid to get rid of a product and she did not wish to 
further burden staff with different rates for citizens which would require proof of citizenship. 
 
MOTION:  Bacon/Shelton approving Resolution No. 2010-2905 adopting the revised Public Works 
Department Fee Schedule as presented by staff. (7 Yes/0 No) Motion carried. 
 
MOTION:  Rierson/    to include a coupon in the utility bill once per season for a discount.  Motion failed for 
lack of a second. 
 

2. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2010-2909 accepting the recommendation of the 
Electronic Sign Ad Hoc Committee and initiating a development code amendment regarding 
potential changes to the City’s sign ordinance. 

TIME – 8:10 PM 
 
Mr. Steve Olson, Associate Planner, presented the staff report including a PowerPoint summary (see official 
meeting packet for full report). 
 
Councilor Wade Witherspoon asked if there had been some type of impact assessment on the businesses 
themselves as requested previously.  Staff stated the research was not included here but would be presented at 
the hearing; there were only a few general complaints, but mostly positive comments from people. 
 
Councilor Rierson spoke of including some type of low interest loan fund for businesses to make sign upgrades, 
maybe through the community development block grant.  Staff stated there are funds available in the 
community development fund, but the interest rate may be around 6%. 
 
Mayor Andrews asked for some clarification of the term “lot” on pages 48-9.  Staff replied it is a parcel of land 
with development, it may have multiple businesses.  Mayor Andrews felt this should be more clearly defined in 
the document. 
 
MOTION:  Shelton/Rierson approving Resolution No. 2010-2909 accepting the recommendation of the 
Electronic Sigh Ad Hoc Committee and initiating a development code amendment as well as the non-code 
recommendations regarding potential changes to the City’s sign ordinance. 
 
Councilor Rierson stated he was only put off by the large sign in the presentation; he did not wish to see any 
large television sets advertising in Newberg, especially not in the downtown area.  He hoped business owner 
would use restraint and he supports the resolution as it stands.  He specifically cited a sign in town that is placed 
on an awning and his concern that the entire awning is considered for the size of the sign; he would like to find 
a way to work around this kind of issue in the current sign code. 
 

Page 19



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (July 6, 2010) 
R:\Recorder\Council Packet\2010-0802\06 Council Minutes 2010-0706.doc Page 4 

Councilor Witherspoon said he supports the resolution but would like to see more hard data for impact on 
businesses if they are going to change the code; it is easier to answer questions from citizens if you have hard 
data to back it up. 
 
Councilor McKinney said he approves of the actions taken to settle an uneven playing field for businesses 
within the code. 
 
Councilor Ryan Howard said he was unsure of how he felt about the City encouraging electronic signs. 
 
Mayor Andrews felt the committee came up with a decent product to forward on for further development. 
 
VOTE:  To approve Resolution No. 2010-2909.  (7 Yes/0 No)  Motion carried. 
 

3. Consider a motion establishing the funding methodology for a Visitor Information Center. 
 
This item has been pulled from the agenda to be discussed at the September 7, 2010 meeting. 
 
IX. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
TIME – 8:50 PM 
 
Mayor Andrews presented a draft letter in support of the Newberg-Dundee Bypass Tier 2 DEIS design options.  
Council discussed the content of the letter and requested changes to be made before they would sign it. 
 
Mr. Mahr passed around a memo regarding the decision on the initiative law suit and discussed the court of 
appeals process.  An executive session was scheduled to further discuss options and the involvement of the 
LOC. 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:18 PM. 

 
ADOPTED by the Newberg City Council this day 2nd of August, 2010. 

 
 

    ____________________________ 
     Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 
 
ATTEST by the Mayor this ____ day of August, 2010. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor  

Page 20



City of Newberg:  ORDER NO. 2010-0026 & ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2729 PAGE 1

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
DATE ACTION REQUESTED: August 2, 2010 

Order   XX  Ordinance  XX Resolution         Motion         Information ___ 
No. 2010-0026     No. 2010-2729       No. 
SUBJECT:    Annexation of two adjacent parcels 
totaling approximately one acre of land, with a 
concurrent zone change from Yamhill County LI 
(Light Industrial) to City C-2 (Community 
Commercial).  The two adjacent parcels are located 
at 308 Hwy 99W and 612 W 3rd Street, Tax Lots 
3219BD-2500 and 3219BD-2600.

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Order:  Jessica Nunley, AICP
Dept.: Planning & Building 

File No.: ANX-10-001
                            (if applicable)

HEARING TYPE: 
 ORDER:  LEGISLATIVE  QUASI-JUDICIAL
 ORDINANCE: LEGISLATIVE  QUASI-JUDICIAL

RECOMMENDATION:
Adopt Order No. 2010-0026, approving the findings that the proposed annexation and concurrent 
zone change meet the applicable City of Newberg Development Code criteria. 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2010-2729, annexing two adjacent parcels located at 308 Hwy 99W and 612 
W 3rd Street (Yamhill County tax lots 3219BD-2500 & -2600) subject to a public vote, and 
scheduling this item for the November 2, 2010 general election.   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
On March 29, 2010, Steve Watt submitted an application requesting annexation and concurrent zone change 
of two adjacent parcels totaling approximately one acre, located at 308 Hwy 99W and 612 W 3rd Street.  The 
zone change request is from Yamhill County LI (Light Industrial) to Newberg C-2 (Community 
Commercial), Yamhill County tax lots 3219BD-2500 & -2600.  The current uses on the sites are a tow truck 
business and an Airgas distribution business (currently closed); both uses comply with the requested C-2 
zoning and with the existing Newberg Comprehensive Plan designation of COM (Commercial).   

The site is currently served by City water, from a line running adjacent to the northern property line of the 
northern parcel.  There is an existing sanitary sewer manhole located on the northeastern portion of the north 
parcel that can adequately serve both parcels.  Stormwater from the site will continue to discharge into the 
stream corridor located on the southern third of the southern site.  The sites are developed and will not 
change their existing access points onto 3rd Street and Hwy 99W.   

On June 10, 2010, the Newberg Planning Commission adopted Resolution 2010-280, recommending that the 
City Council approve the requested annexation of the two parcels with the concurrent zone change, and 
withdraw the parcels from the Newberg Rural Fire Protection District.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The proposed annexation will shift police and fire service responsibility to the City.  However, because 
these parcels are in commercial use, they will add to the City’s tax base without unduly burdening certain 
public services such as schools and parks.

Page 21



City of Newberg:  ORDER NO. 2010-0026 & ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2729 PAGE 2

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
Annexation of these two parcels is a logical extension of the city limit boundary to the stream corridor, 
similar to nearby parcels.  As these two parcels are currently in commercial use, they will add to the 
city’s tax base without burdening certain public services such as schools and parks.  Adequate sewer and 
water service exists to serve the site, and no new access points are proposed.  The only negative effect 
would be that the site does not contribute any “buildable” land to decrease Newberg’s commercial 
buildable land need.  Overall, the positive effects outweigh the negative effects, and the proposal meets 
the applicable annexation criteria.

ATTACHMENTS:
Order 2010-0026 with: 

  Exhibit A: Findings 
  Exhibit B: Annexation Map 
  Exhibit C: Legal Description 
  Exhibit D: Comprehensive Plan Map 

Ordinance 2010-2729 with: 
  Exhibit A: Annexation Map 
  Exhibit B: Legal Description 

1. Planning Commission Staff Report with Planning Commission Resolution 2010-280 (as 
adopted) with: 
Exhibit A: Findings (by reference) 

 Exhibit B: Annexation Map (by reference) 
 Exhibit C: Legal Description (by reference) 
 Exhibit D: Comprehensive Plan Map (by reference) 

2. June 10, 2010 Planning Commission Minutes 
3. Aerial Photo 
4. Existing Yamhill County Zoning Map 
5. Existing Development Plan 
6. Utility Map 
7. ANX-10-001 Application 
8. Public Comments – none received 
9. Newberg Development Code and Comprehensive Plan (by reference)   

Page 22



City of Newberg:  ORDER NO. 2010-0026 & ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2729 PAGE 1

ORDER NO. 2010-0026

AN ORDER FINDING THAT TWO ADJACENT PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 
308 HWY 99W AND 612 W 3RD STREET, YAMHILL COUNTY TAX LOTS 
3219BD-2500 & -2600 MEET THE APPLICABLE NEWBERG
DEVELOPMENT CODE CRITERIA TO BE ANNEXED INTO THE CITY AND 
TO CHANGE THE CURRENT ZONING DESIGNATION FROM YAMHILL
COUNTY LI TO CITY C-2

RECITALS:

1. On March 29, 2010, Steve Watt submitted an application requesting annexation and concurrent zone 
change of two adjacent parcels totaling approximately one acre.  The zone change request is from 
Yamhill County LI (Light Industrial) to Newberg C-2 (Community Commercial), Yamhill County 
tax lots # 3219BD-2500 & -2600, located at 308 Hwy 99W and 612 W 3rd Street. 

2. The requested zone change is in accordance with the current comprehensive plan designation for the 
site of COM (Commercial), and fits the current uses of the site as a tow truck company and Airgas 
distribution center.

3. On June 10, 2010, the Newberg Planning Commission heard the proposal and adopted Resolution 
2010-280, recommending that the City Council approve the requested annexation and concurrent 
zone change.

4. After proper notice, the Newberg City Council held a hearing on August 2, 2010 to consider the 
proposed annexation and concurrent zone change.  After the staff report and public testimony, the 
City Council finds that the proposal has met the required criteria for annexation and zone change.

THE CITY OF NEWBERG ORDERS AS FOLLOWS:

1. The City Council finds that the annexation and concurrent zone change meet the Newberg 
Development Code criteria and adopts the findings, which are attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
Exhibit A is hereby adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

2. Annexation requires the City Council to adopt an ordinance annexing the property, and requires 
approval at a public vote. If the annexation is approved through these procedures, then the City 
orders the following: 

A. The zoning of the property shown in Exhibit B and described in Exhibit C is changed to 
C-2 (Community Commercial).  This zoning designation corresponds with the  

Page 23



City of Newberg:  ORDER NO. 2010-0026 & ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2729 PAGE 2

Comprehensive Plan designation of COM as shown in Exhibit D.  Exhibits B, C and D 
are hereby adopted and by this reference incorporated.

EFFECTIVE DATE of this order is the day after the adoption date, which is: August 3, 2010.
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 2nd day of August, 2010.

_________________________
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

ATTEST by the Mayor this 5th day of August, 2010. 

____________________
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 QUASI-JUDICIAL HISTORY
By and through the Newberg Planning Commission at their June 10, 2010 meeting.  

Attachments: 
Exhibit A: Findings 

 Exhibit B: Annexation Map 
 Exhibit C: Legal Description 
 Exhibit D: Comprehensive Plan Map 

Page 24



Exhibit A to Order 2010‐0026: Findings 
 

Watt Annexation – 308 Hwy 99W & 612 W 3rd Street – ANX-10-001 
 

I. APPLICABLE ANNEXATION REGULATIONS – NEWBERG DEVELOPMENT CODE § 151.261 
CONDITIONS FOR ANNEXATION 

 
(A) The subject site must be located within the Newberg Urban Growth Boundary or 

Newberg Urban Reserve Areas. 
 
FINDING:  The site is within Newberg’s urban growth boundary. 
 

(B) The subject site must be contiguous to the existing city limits. 
 
FINDING:  The subject site is contiguous to the existing city limits along its west, north and east 
sides.  
 

II. APPLICABLE ANNEXATION REGULATIONS – NEWBERG DEVELOPMENT CODE § 151.262 
QUASI-JUDICIAL ANNEXATION CRITERIA 

 
(A) The proposed use for the site complies with the Newberg comprehensive plan and with 

the designation on the Newberg comprehensive plan map.  If a redesignation of the plan 
map is requested concurrent with annexation, the uses allowed under the proposed 
designation must comply with the Newberg comprehensive plan. 

 
FINDING:  The comprehensive plan designation for the site is Commercial (COM).  The existing 
uses on the site are an Airgas distribution business and a tow truck business; both uses comply 
with the existing Newberg comprehensive plan designation and with the proposed C-2 zoning.   
 

(B) An adequate level of urban services must be available, or made available, within three 
years time of annexation, except as noted in division (E) below.  An adequate level of 
urban services shall be defined as: 

(1) Municipal sanitary sewer and water service meeting the requirements enumerated 
in the Newberg comprehensive plan for provision of these services. 

(2) Roads with an adequate design capacity for the proposed use and projected future 
uses.  Where construction of the road is not deemed necessary within the three-
year time period, the city shall note requirements such as dedication of right-of-
way, waiver of remonstrance against assessment for road improvement costs, or 
participation in other traffic improvement costs, for application at the 
appropriate level of the planning process.  The city shall also consider public 
costs for improvement and the ability of the city to provide for those costs. 

 
FINDING:  As explained below, public facilities will have adequate capacity to accommodate the 
demands of the site within three years time of annexation.  

Page 25



 
Water:  The site is already being served with city water service.  A 12-inch water line runs down 
W Third Street and across Highway 99W, adjacent to the northern property line of the northern 
parcel. 
 
Stormwater:  Stormwater from the site discharges to the stream corridor located on the southern 
third of the site.   
 
Sanitary Sewer:  There is a Newberg sanitary sewer manhole located on the northeastern portion 
of the northern parcel that can adequately serve both parcels.        
 
Roads:  The site is adjacent to and takes access from W Third Street (the northern parcel) and 
Highway 99W (the southern parcel).  No new roads or access points are proposed.   
 

State Transportation Planning Rule: 
660-012-0060  
Plan and Land Use Regulation Amendments  
(1) Where an amendment to a functional plan, an acknowledged comprehensive plan, or a land use 
regulation would significantly affect an existing or planned transportation facility, the local 
government shall put in place measures as provided in section (2) of this rule to assure that allowed 
land uses are consistent with the identified function, capacity, and performance standards (e.g. level 
of service, volume to capacity ratio, etc.) of the facility. A plan or land use regulation amendment 
significantly affects a transportation facility if it would:  

(a) Change the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation facility 
(exclusive of correction of map errors in an adopted plan);  
(b) Change standards implementing a functional classification system; or  
(c) As measured at the end of the planning period identified in the adopted transportation system 
plan:  

(A) Allow land uses or levels of development that would result in types or levels of travel or 
access that are inconsistent with the functional classification of an existing or planned 
transportation facility;  
(B) Reduce the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility below the 
minimum acceptable performance standard identified in the TSP or comprehensive plan; or  
(C) Worsen the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility that is otherwise 
projected to perform below the minimum acceptable performance standard identified in the 
TSP or comprehensive plan. 

 
Finding: Annexation and rezoning of these two parcels will not affect the number of trips 
on Highway 99W as the uses will remain the same or similar to what is already permitted.  
If the uses change in the future to something that would generate over 40 trips in the pm 
peak hours, a traffic study will be required at that time.    

 
(C) Findings documenting the availability of police, fire, parks, and school facilities and 

services shall be made to allow for conclusionary findings either for or against the 
proposed annexation.  The adequacy of these services shall be considered in relation to 
annexation proposals. 

 
Finding:  Police services are currently provided to the area by Yamhill County Sheriff’s Office.  

Page 26



Fire service is provided by Newberg Rural Fire District.  The proposed annexation will shift 
police and fire services to the city.  The site is developed as commercial and will remain in 
commercial use; therefore, it will generate revenue for the city without unduly taxing the city’s 
services for public safety, parks or school services. Overall, adequate public facilities and 
services exist to support the proposed annexation.  
 

(D) The burden for providing the findings for divisions (A), (B) and (C) of this section is 
placed upon the applicant. 

 
FINDING:  The applicant has provided written findings for this section.   
 

(E) The City Council may annex properties where urban services are not and cannot 
practically be made available within the three year time frame noted in division (B) 
above, but where annexation is needed to address a health hazard, to annex an island, to 
address sewer or water connection issues for existing development, to address specific 
legal or contract issues, to annex property where the timing and provision of adequate 
services in relation to development is or will be addressed through legislatively adopted 
specific area plans or similar plans, or to address similar situations.  In these cases, 
absent a specific legal or contractual constraint, the Council shall apply an interim zone, 
such as a limited-use overlay, that would limit development of the property until such 
time as the services become available.   

 
FINDING:  This criterion is not applicable to this property. 
 

Page 27



Exhibit B to Order 2010‐0026:  
Annexation Map   

Page 28



Exhibit C to Order 2010‐0026:  
Legal Description  

(ANX‐10‐001) 
 

 

Page 29



Exhibit D to Order 2010‐0026: 
Comprehensive Plan Map 

 

 

Page 30



City of Newberg:  ORDER NO. 2010-0026 & ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2729 PAGE 1

ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2729

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING TWO ADJACENT PROPERTIES LOCATED 
AT 308 HWY 99W AND 612 W 3RD STREET, YAMHILL COUNTY TAX 
LOTS 3219BD-2500 & -2600, BE ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF 
NEWBERG AND WITHDRAWN FROM THE NEWBERG RURAL FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT SUBJECT TO A PUBLIC VOTE, AND 
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY ELECTIONS OFFICER TO 
CERTIFY TO THE YAMHILL COUNTY CLERK A BALLOT TITLE FOR 
THE MEASURE TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE ELECTORATE OF THE CITY
OF NEWBERG FOR THEIR APPROVAL OF AN ANNEXATION FOR THIS 
SAME PROPERTY

RECITALS:

1. On March 29, 2010, Steve Watt submitted an application requesting annexation of two adjacent 
parcels located at 308 Hwy 99W and 612 W 3rd Street, Yamhill County tax lots # 3219BD-2500 & -
2600, with a concurrent zone change from Yamhill County LI (Light Industrial) to Newberg C-2 
(Community Commercial). 

2. After proper notice, on December 21, 2009, the City Council held a public hearing on the item: 
accurately stated objections to jurisdiction, bias, and ex-parte contact; considered public testimony; 
examined the record; heard the presentation from staff; examined and discussed the appropriate 
criteria to judge the project (as listed in the staff report); considered all relevant information 
regarding the item; and deliberated. 

3. On August 2, 2010, the City Council adopted Order 2010-0026 affirming that the requested 
annexation met the applicable Newberg Development Code criteria.   

4. The City of Newberg charter requires that territory may be annexed into the City only upon approval 
by a majority vote among the electorate of the City.  This matter may be placed before the voters at 
the November 2, 2010 general election.   

THE CITY OF NEWBERG ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

1. The question of annexing the property shown in Exhibit A and described in Exhibit B shall be 
submitted to the electorate of the city at the November 2, 2010 general election. Exhibits A and B 
are hereby adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

2. The City Council directs that all costs associated with placing the item on the ballot be paid for by 
the owners.  This includes but is not limited to noticing, signage, advertising, and costs assessed by 
the Yamhill County Clerk to place the item on the ballot.   

3. The City Elections Officer is hereby authorized and directed to certify to the Yamhill County Clerk 

Page 31



City of Newberg:  ORDER NO. 2010-0026 & ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2729 PAGE 2

the ballot title for the annexation measure to be placed before the voters.  Further, the City Elections 
Officer is directed to give all necessary notices of the ballot title and do all other necessary acts and 
deeds which may be required to place the matter before the voters of the City of Newberg at said 
election.

4. The City Attorney is directed to have prepared and review the explanatory statement which shall be 
submitted to the Yamhill County Clerk with the ballot title.  Such explanatory statement shall be 
filed with the City Elections Officer and the City Elections Officer is further directed to certify this 
explanatory statement to the Yamhill County Clerk. 

5. The City Elections Officer is authorized to do all other necessary acts and deeds which may be 
required to conduct the election concerning this measure. 

6. Should this annexation request be approved by a majority of the electorate of the City of Newberg at 
the identified election date, the property shown in Exhibit A and described in Exhibit B, shall be 
annexed and withdrawn from the Newberg Rural Fire Protection District, and the following events 
will occur: 

A. The City of Newberg land use inventory data will be updated to reflect the new addition. 

B. The Recorder of the City of Newberg is hereby authorized and directed to make and submit 
to the Secretary of State, the Department of Revenue, the Yamhill County Elections Officer, 
and the Assessor of Yamhill County, a certified copy of this ordinance. 

EFFECTIVE DATE of this ordinance is 30 days after the adoption date, which is: September 2, 2010.
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 2nd day of August, 2010, by the 
following votes: AYE:  NAY:  ABSENT:  ABSTAIN:

_________________________
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

ATTEST by the Mayor this 5th day of August, 2010. 

____________________
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY
By and through the Newberg Planning Commission at their June 10, 2010 meeting. 

Attachments: 
Exhibit A: Annexation Map 

 Exhibit B: Legal Description 

Page 32



Exhibit A to Ordinance 2010‐2729: 
 Annexation Map   

Page 33



Exhibit B to Ordinance 2010‐2729: 
 Legal Description  

(ANX‐10‐001) 
 

 

Page 34



Planning and Building Department 
P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132 
503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.ci.newberg.or.us 

 
 
 

ANNEXATION STAFF REPORT 
 
FILE NO.:  ANX-10-001 
 
REQUEST:  Annexation of two parcels totaling approximately one acre into the City of 

Newberg.  The proposed zoning is C-2 (Community Commercial).    
 
LOCATION:  308 Highway 99W 
 
TAX LOTS:  3219BD-2500 & -2600 
 
APPLICANT/ Steve Watt 
OWNER: 
 
ZONING:  Yamhill County LI (Light Industrial) 
 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN DESIGNATION:  COM (Commercial) 
 
DATE OF HEARING: June 10, 2010 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 2010-280 with: 
     Exhibit A: Findings 
     Exhibit B: Annexation Map 
     Exhibit C: Legal Description 
     Exhibit D: Comprehensive Plan Map 
1. Aerial Photo  
2. Existing Yamhill County Zoning 
3. Existing Development Plan 
4. Utility Map 
5. Application 
6. Public Comments – none received  
7. Newberg Comprehensive Plan and 
Development Code (by reference) 
  

 
 

 

Page 35

Attachment 1: ANX-10-001 Staff Report & PC Resolution 2010-280



 
A. PROCESS:  The applicant's request for approval of an annexation is being processed 

through the provisions of Newberg Development Code § 151.024 as follows: 
  
 March 29, 2010 Annexation application submitted 
 May 4, 2010     Public notice was mailed to property owners within 500 feet of the 

site for comment.  
May 11, 2010  Notice was posted on the site. 

 May 26, 2010  Notice was posted in four public places and published in the 
Newberg Graphic. 

  
 
B. CRITERIA:  Staff has determined that the following criteria apply to the annexation 

proposal.  The Planning Commission or other interested parties should direct their 
comments to the criteria listed or state why they feel other criteria may apply.   

 
 NDC § 151.262 – Quasi-Judicial Annexation Criteria 

 
 
C. SITE INFORMATION: 
 
1. Request: Annexation of two parcels totaling approximately one acre into the City of 

Newberg, along with a concurrent zone change from Yamhill County LI (Light 
Industrial) to Newberg C-2 (Community Commercial).   

 
2. Zoning/Comprehensive Plan designations: The site is located within the Newberg urban 

growth boundary and has a Newberg comprehensive plan designation of COM 
(Commercial).   

 
5. Site:  The site is relatively flat along the developed northern/eastern portion and then the 

southern third of the site slopes down into the stream corridor.  The existing use of the 
site is an Airgas distribution business and a tow truck business.  These existing uses are 
compatible with the proposed C-2 zone.   

 
6. Surrounding uses:  
 West: Highway 99W 
 South: Stream Corridor 
 East: Railroad, Baker Rock yard 
 North: Shell gas station 
 
8. Utilities: The site is currently served with City water.  A Newberg sanitary sewer 

manhole is located on the northeastern portion of the site for future connection.  
Stormwater drains to the stream corridor in the southern portion of the site.   

 
9. Roads:  The northern parcel of the site is adjacent to and takes access from W Third 

Street; the southern parcel of the site is adjacent to and takes access from Highway 99W.  
No new roads or accesses are proposed.   

Page 36

Attachment 1: ANX-10-001 Staff Report & PC Resolution 2010-280



 
D. AGENCY COMMENTS: The proposal was referred to the following public agencies: 
City Manager, Planning and Building Director, Public Works Director, Public Works Surveyor, 
Maintenance Supt., Legal, Building, Police, Fire, Finance, NW Natural Gas, Newberg School 
District, PGE, Comcast, Verizon, Newberg Garbage, Chehalem Park and Rec. District, Newberg 
Rural Fire District, Postmaster, Yamhill County Planning, Yamhill County Roads, and ODOT. 
 
 No substantive comments were received.   
 

 
 
F. PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  The preliminary staff recommendation 

is made in the absence of public hearing testimony, and may be modified subsequent to the 
close of the public hearing.  At this writing, the staff recommends the following motion: 

  
 Move to adopt Planning Commission Resolution 2010-280, which recommends to the 

City Council approval of the requested annexation. 
 

Page 37

Attachment 1: ANX-10-001 Staff Report & PC Resolution 2010-280



Page 38

Attachment 1: ANX-10-001 Staff Report & PC Resolution 2010-280



Page 39

Attachment 2: PC Minutes, June 10,2010



Page 40

Attachment 2: PC Minutes, June 10,2010



Page 41

Attachment 2: PC Minutes, June 10,2010



Page 42

Attachment 2: PC Minutes, June 10,2010



Page 43

Attachment 2: PC Minutes, June 10,2010



Page 44

Attachment 2: PC Minutes, June 10,2010



Page 45

Attachment 2: PC Minutes, June 10,2010



Page 46

Attachment 2: PC Minutes, June 10,2010



Attachment 3: Aerial Photo 
 

 

Page 47



Attachment 4:  
Existing Yamhill County Zoning  

  

 

Page 48



Attachment 5: Existing Development Plan 
 

 

Page 49



Attachment 6: Utility Map 
 

 

Page 50



Page 51

Attachment 7: ANX-10-001 Application



Page 52

Attachment 7: ANX-10-001 Application



Page 53

Attachment 7: ANX-10-001 Application



Page 54

Attachment 7: ANX-10-001 Application



Page 55

Attachment 7: ANX-10-001 Application



Page 56

Attachment 7: ANX-10-001 Application



Page 57

Attachment 7: ANX-10-001 Application



Page 58

Attachment 7: ANX-10-001 Application



Page 59

Attachment 7: ANX-10-001 Application



Page 60

Attachment 7: ANX-10-001 Application



Page 61

Attachment 7: ANX-10-001 Application



Page 62

Attachment 7: ANX-10-001 Application



Page 63

Attachment 7: ANX-10-001 Application



Page 64

Attachment 7: ANX-10-001 Application


	Agenda
	Resolution No. 2010-2915 - State of Oregon funds exchange
	City Council Minutes for June 28, 2010, & July 6, 2010
	Order No. 2010-0026 & Ordinance No. 2010-2729 - Watt Annexation  



